# Golden Gate University School of Law GGU Law Digital Commons

California Assembly

California Documents

1989

# 1989 Legislative Summary

Assembly Committee on Education

Follow this and additional works at: http://digitalcommons.law.ggu.edu/caldocs\_assembly Part of the <u>Legislation Commons</u>

#### **Recommended** Citation

Assembly Committee on Education, "1989 Legislative Summary" (1989). *California Assembly*. Paper 429. http://digitalcommons.law.ggu.edu/caldocs\_assembly/429

This Committee Report is brought to you for free and open access by the California Documents at GGU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in California Assembly by an authorized administrator of GGU Law Digital Commons. For more information, please contact jfischer@ggu.edu.

# **1989 LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY** CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE

# ON

# **EDUCATION**

**TERESA P. HUGHES** Chairwoman

December 1989

**MEMBERS** 

DEPUSIORY

MAR 8 1990

#### RECEIVED

Patrick Johnston Marian W. La Follette Ted Lempert Tim Leslie Willard Murray Jack O'Connell John Vasconcellos Paul Woodruff Phillip D. Wyman

Teresa P. Hughes **Rusty Areias** Charles W. Bader Chris Chandler Delaine Eastin Sam Farr Terry Friedman - Hayden v Rae Hunter . A24 1989

KFC 648 Sugar<sup>a</sup>

2

9

#### 0304A

# LAW LIBRARY

NOV 26 1991

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

KFC 648 .A24

D

•

3

۵

Þ

1989

# GOLDEN GATE UNIVERSITY

	Page
School Finance	1
Proposition 98 Implementation Miscellaneous	1 1
School Facilities	3
Asbestos Abatement Developer Fees Portable Classrooms Miscellaneous	3 4 5 5
School Personnel	6
Instructional Materials	9
Educational Programs	10
Adult Education Dropout Prevention Educational Technology Environmental Education Special Education Vocational Education Miscellaneous	10 10 11 11 12 12 13
School Climate	14
Race Relations/Diversity Education School Safety	14 14
Health	15
AIDS Education Drug Education Nutrition Miscellaneous	15 15 16 16
Parent Involvement	17
Administration	17
School-Based Management Miscellaneous	17 18

- i -

### <u>Page</u>

19

Student Fees and Financial Aid	19
Community Colleges	21
California State University	22
University of California	23
Campus Crime	24
Private Postsecondary Education	24
General Postsecondary Education	24

٢

۲

۲

Ď

۵

9

Higher Education

#### BILL SUMMARY 1989

#### SCHOOL FINANCE

#### Proposition 98 Implementation

Ð

8

1997

AB 198 (O'Connell) Establishes a statutory framework for implementing Proposition 98 and determining the minimum revenue guarantee established by the initiative. The bill also establishes statutory cost of living adjustments and growth entitlements for 7 categorical programs (contingent upon voter ratification of SCA 1). Finally, the bill appropriates over \$480 million in 1989-90, through various new and existing programs.

Chapter 83, 1989

AB 751 (Hughes) Clean-up measure to AB 198, SB 98, and the Budget Act of 1989-90.

Chapter 1395, 1989

AB 1087 (Hughes) Clean-up measure to AB 198 and SB 98. This bill appropriates an additional \$8 million for special education growth, and makes various technical changes.

Chapter 92, 1989

AB 1246 (O'Connell) Makes numerous technical cleanup changes to the Education Code. Requires all bills introduced or amended after January 1, 1990, to indicate whether they contain appropriations that count toward Proposition 98 minimum funding requirements.

Chapter 1256, 1989

SB 98 (Hart) Implements Proposition 98 with identical language as found in AB 198. The bill also appropriates over \$431 million in 1988-89, through various new and existing programs.

Chapter 82, 1989

#### Miscellaneous

AB 137 (Johnson) Authorizes the Orange County Office of Education to provide services at a youth correctional center as if it was a juvenile court school. The bill also restricts any state efforts to recover any funds improperly allocated prior to January 1, 1990, and prohibits any future state-reimburseable claims.

Chapter 929, 1989

- 1 -

AB 280 (Chandler) Permits small school districts to receive funding under the alternative "necessary small school" funding formula as long as this amount is greater than or equal to the ADA-based funding amount.

Chapter 449, 1989

2000

6

(

1

AB 387 (Murray) Repeals Budget Act control language for the Economic Impact Aid program which was unnecessary in light of the Proposition 98 implementation legislation.

Chapter 830, 1989

AB 789 (Hill) Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to apportion funds as specified to Whittier Union High School District at a faster rate than authorized by statute in order to compensate the district for lost interest earnings that resulted from an audit error.

Chapter 275, 1989

AB 823 (Bader) Makes technical changes in the calculation of Average Daily Attendance for county offices of education.

Chapter 838, 1989

AB 1232 (Johnston) Exempts the Stockton Unified School District from financial penalties as a result of the closure of the Cleveland Elementary School following the tragic shooting at that school.

Chapter 16, 1989

AB 2525 (Harris) Makes available a \$10 million emergency loan to the Oakland Unified School District, requires the district to develop specified plans for improvement, and provides for oversight of the district by a State-appointed Trustee.

Chapter 1438, 1989

SB 21 (Ayala) Increases the funding that the Chino Unified School district may annually receive for the Boys Republic High School.

Chapter 309, 1989

SB 109 (Torres) Appropriates \$50 million from the federal State Legalization Impact Aid Grant (SLIAG) program for 1988-89, to cover a shortfall in funding for ESL and civics programs for people granted amnesty under the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act (IRCA). These funds are advanced from the 1989-90 SLIAG funds.

Chapter 35, 1989

SB 666 (Morgan) Establishes class size reduction programs in core academic areas in grades 9-12, and in language arts programs in grades 1-3. Appropriates up to \$110 million from the Proposition 98 reserve for these purposes.

Chapter 1147, 1989

SB 693 (Rogers) Permits the State Board of Education to waive any or all of the financial penalties associated with failure to meet the instructional time incentive target minutes per year. Permits any early-late instructional program to qualify for special treatment in instructional time incentive calculations.

Chapter 782, 1989

SB 1440 (Dills) Increases the reimbursement rate for driver training instruction from \$80 to \$97 per pupil instructed. The bill also increases from \$247 to \$290 the reimbursement rate for driver training instruction provided to educationally or physically handicapped students.

Chapter 924, 1989

#### SCHOOL FACILITIES

#### Asbestos Abatement

Ŵ

۵

AB 101 (Speier) Establishes provisions for state funding of asbestos abatement in K-12 public schools and for asbestos abatement control in general. Establishes priorities for spending any Proposition 79 funds set aside by the State Allocation Board for asbestos abatement.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 206 (L. Greene) Exempts from certain requirements under the State School Building Lease-Purchase Program any project that involves only the identification, assessment or abatement of asbestos.

Chapter 1408, 1989

- 3 -

SJR 3 (L. Greene) Urges the President and Congress to enact emergency legislation to authorize the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to grant a delay in the implementation of the management plan required under the federal Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) program to any public or private school that has demonstrated the willingness to comply with the requirements of the program.

Res. Chapter 177, 1989

1000

-

i

#### Developer Fees

AB 181 (Campbell) Applies to school districts the same procedures for adoption and appeal of developer fees that apply to all other local agencies. Limits or exempts these fees on residential additions, religious structures, governmental buildings, and private schools. Creates several incentives for school districts to assume larger shares of the costs of school facilities. Makes numerous other changes to the financing of state-aided school facilities projects.

Chapter 1209, 1989

SB 77 (Leroy Greene) Exempts school facilities projects funded 50 percent with local funds from an additional developer fee-based matching share. Permits these same projects to be "fast tracked" by the State Allocation Board.

Chapter 1404, 1989

SB 131 (Leroy Greene) Applies to school districts the same procedures for adoption and appeal of developer fees that apply to all other local agencies. Limits or exempts these fees on residential additions, religious structures, governmental buildings, and private schools. Creates several incentives for school districts to assume larger shares of the costs of school facilities. Makes numerous other changes to the financing of state-aided school facilities projects.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 139 (Presley) Reduces local matching share obligations for state-aided school facilities projects in the event a district contractually dedicated its developer fee revenues for another facilities project prior to January 1, 1987.

Chapter 1439, 1989

- 4 -

SB 1528 (Mello) Exempts from developer fees development projects within the area of school facilities Mello-Roos districts. Reduces local matching share obligations for state-aided school facilities projects by the amount of any such Mello-Roos tax revenue.

Chapter 1121, 1989

#### Portable Classrooms

۲

۲

AB 47 (Bader) Permits school districts to acquire portable classrooms for the state with developer fee revenues and then use the purchase costs to offset state rent payments.

Chapter 677, 1989

SB 80 (L. Greene) Allows the State Allocation Board to acquire portable classrooms by lease and to sublease them to school districts. The bill also increases the maximum amount paid by school districts to lease portable classrooms from the state from \$2,000/year to \$2,500/year effective January 1, 1991.

Vetoed by the Governor

#### <u>Miscellaneous</u>

AB 1164 (Filante) Adds school sites used by private entities for child care purposes to the list of nonuse payment exemptions.

Chapter 158, 1989

AB 1227 (Hauser) Requires the Department of Corrections to conduct a study of the impact of prison construction on the school facilities needs of surrounding school districts.

Chapter 647, 1989

AB 1321 (Jones) Permits increases in the costs allowances of school facilities projects if funded from local tax revenues and if there is no reduction in a district's matching share obligation for the project.

Chapter 286, 1989

SB 164 (Craven) Authorizes the Encinitas Union School District in San Diego County to expand the use of a 1977 voter-approved tax rate increase to lease or purchase school facilities with the approval of a majority of the district's voters.

Chapter 47, 1989

- 5 -

SB 759 (Beverly) Expands the criteria for school districts to participate in the state school deferred maintenance program in the event they previously placed the proceeds from the sale of surplus school property in their General Fund.

Chapter 711, 1989

6

THE OWNER WATER

- egg

SB 821 (Vuich) Allows county superintendents of schools to lease facilities which do not meet Field Act earthquake standards for use as community schools with specified conditions. The bill also repeals the sunset date on statutes allowing specialized secondary programs operated on UC or CSU campuses to be in buildings that do not meet the Field Act. The bill provides this same exemption for adult special education students served on UC or CSU campuses.

Chapter 916, 1989

SB 914 (Vuich) Allows school districts to purchase any school site from an adjacent school district. The bill also allows the Cutler-Orosi Unified School District to consolidate the district governing board election with the statewide General election in November of 1990, without submitting a resolution as required by law.

Chapter 135, 1989

SB 942 (L. Greene) Deletes the existing requirement that two "space saver" schools be built in northern California and two in southern California, thus allowing the State Allocation Board to choose to locate these schools anywhere in the State.

Chapter 918, 1989

#### SCHOOL PERSONNEL

AB 953 (Killea) Permits holders of specified credentials received prior to 1974, to add subject authorizations through testing rather than by coursework completion. The bill also allows holders of specified credentials in San Diego City Unified School District to be assigned to teach in departmentalized settings in grades 1 to 6 until the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) completes a study on teacher assignment.

Chapter 375, 1989

- 6 -

AB 1105 (Hughes) Requires a school district or community college district to grant an unpaid leave of absence, to any certificated employee who has applied in good faith for a disability allowance, and if granted, specifies the maximum leave allowed must start from the date that the leave is approved.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 1168 (Jones) Requires review panels convened to evaluate a certificated employee for incompetence due to mental illness be composed of psychologists, in addition to psychiatrists, and that at least one panel member be a psychiatrist.

Chapter 455, 1989

AB 1215 (Clute) Revises provisions of law which require the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) to develop standards to ensure that each faculty member who teaches a course relating to teaching methods or administrative services credentials actively participates in public elementary or secondary schools and classrooms at least once every three years. The bill exempts from this requirement faculty members whose primary assignments are departments or schools other than education.

Chapter 1057, 1989

AB 1541 (Harvey) Requires the Commission on Teacher Credentialing to submit to the Legislature by July 1, 1990, a report on the inadequate supply of substitute teachers in rural school districts and to recommend strategies to expand the supply of substitute teachers.

Chapter 1037, 1989

AB 1761 (Woodruff) Encourages postsecondary education institutions that operate teaching or services credential programs to grant up to three semester units of credit for participation in a field experience program in which students would work with truant or at-risk pupils who are enrolled in public schools.

Chapter 609, 1989

AB 2039 (Woodruff) Allows courses on cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) to count towards meeting existing professional growth requirements that teachers are required to satisfy every five years in order to maintain a valid teaching credential.

Chapter 353, 1989

۵

١

۵

3

- 7 -

AB 2099 (Lempert) Makes various changes to existing law relating to teacher credentialing that will give districts more flexibility in assigning teachers. The bill deletes the requirement that assignments of certain teachers be restricted to partial days only (two or three periods a day). The bill also extends from September 1, 1987, to September 1, 1989, the grandfather provision that allows holders of standard secondary credentials to receive a supplementary authorization.

Chapter 385, 1989

No.

-

1

1

AB 2304 (Clute) Makes changes to the procedures used by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing when teachers are accused of crimes or unprofessional conduct. Expands the list of sex crimes for which law enforcement must notify districts if a teacher is accused. The bill also repeals existing requirements in law for the Specialist Credential (including a regular teaching credential), establishes some minimum requirements, and leaves the CTC to develop regulations for specialist credentials.

Chapter 388, 1989

ACR 70 (Hughes) Declares 1990, as the Year of the Teacher, and 1990-2000, as the Education Decade.

Res. Chapter 118, 1989

SB 156 (L. Greene) Establishes a two-year associate of arts degree program for teacher assistants at two community colleges to train teacher assistants for grades 1-6.

Chapter 1345, 1989 (Governor eliminated \$ appropriation)

SB 1368 (Watson) Requires the Commission on Teacher Credentialing to study statutes and regulations governing the assignment of certificated personnel in elementary and middle schools. Provides some additional assignment flexibility for elementary school teachers to team teach and to teach in departmentalized classes.

Chapter 728, 1989

- 8 -

#### INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

Ô

1

AB 1012 (Moore) Requires the State Board of Education, by January 1, 1991, to prepare a list of instructional materials, including textbooks, that highlight the contributions of underrepresented minorities in the development of California and the United States.

Chapter 452, 1989

AB 2026 (Eastin) Establishes the "Library Education and Reading Now" (LEARN) grant program to provide matching funds to school districts for the purchase of library resources. The bill appropriates \$5 million for these purposes.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 2225 (Epple) Modifies the process for the State Board of Education to adopt textbooks by requiring a biennial adoption cycle and specifying the criteria for rejecting submitted materials. Changes the composition of the Curriculum Commission to include a majority of teachers.

Vetoed by the Governor

ACR 37 (Speier) States legislative intent that no textbook be adopted for use in California unless it accurately reflects the Japanese-American internment experience as a violation of human rights rather than as a military necessity.

Res. Chapter 92, 1989

SB 594 (Maddy) Modifies the process for the State Board of Education to adopt textbooks by requiring a biennial adoption cycle and specifying the criteria for rejecting submitted materials. Changes the composition of the Curriculum Commission to include a majority of teachers.

> Chapter 1181, 1989 (Governor eliminated appropriation)

#### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS

#### Adult Education

۲

b

١

8

AB 335 (Roybal-Allard) Reauthorizes the adult education program through June 30, 1994. The bill also requires the State Department of Education and the Legislative Analyst to review and report upon the adult education program every five years, commencing in 1994.

Chapter 73, 1989

AB 1190 (Campbell) Authorizes local education agencies, including community college districts, to contract with an activity center or sheltered workshop for purposes of providing adult education services to handicapped adults. The bill also authorizes these education agencies to claim state funding for services provided pursuant to these contracts.

Chapter 255, 1989

#### Dropout Prevention

SB 68 (Torres) Extends the sunset date on Educational Clinics and Alternative Education and Work Centers for school dropouts until June 30, 1994.

Chapter 242, 1989

SB 410 (Torres) Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to prepare 2 reports identifying all programs operated by school districts and the Department of Education which serve at-risk pupils.

Chapter 1187, 1989

SB 950 (Stirling) Lowers the minimum age requirement for a work permit from age 14 to age 13 in cases where the minor has completed the sixth grade, is a potential dropout, and is participating in an employment program that is jointly sponsored by a school district and private business or industry.

Chapter 866, 1989

#### Educational Technology

AB 898 (Areias) Requests the California Council on Science and Technology to study and report by July 1, 1992, on the relationship between the training and educational needs of California's high technology industries and the education programs in these areas offered by postsecondary institutions. The Council is to have only an advisory role in relationship to any postsecondary institution.

Chapter 1211, 1989

é

-

Your

1

AB 1470 (Farr) Revises the provisions of the Educational Technology program, and extends the program until December 31, 1992. Specifically, the bill establishes new matching grant programs, authorizes the development of regional consortia, revises the membership and duties of the Educational Technology Committee, and establishes a 19-member planning commission to develop a state master plan.

Chapter 1334, 1989

AB 1962 (Clute) Requires the State Allocation Board (SAB) to contract with the Office of the State Architect (OSA) to conduct a study and develop recommendations regarding appropriate building standards for promoting the use of computer technology in elementary and secondary classrooms. The OSA would be required to report its findings to the Legislature by January 1, 1991. The bill appropriates \$70,000 from the School Building Lease-Purchase Fund to cover these costs.

Chapter 877, 1989

SB 1202 (Hart) Requires the California Postsecondary Education Commission to develop, for legislative consideration, a state policy on the use of distance learning technology in education.

Chapter 1038, 1989

#### Environmental Education

AB 476 (Campbell) Requires the Governor to proclaim April 21 as John Muir Day and for school and educational institutions to observe this day through suitable exercises related to ecology and the environment.

Chapter 833, 1989

SB 885 (Hart) Establishes a statewide competition called "Endangered Species Education Project of 1989," for elementary and junior high students, involving the adoption of an endangered species, a strategy to educate student and community members, and use of student panels to select exemplary proposals.

Chapter 1302, 1989

#### Special Education

۲

۵

AB 1744 (Friedman) Adds to existing law to ensure that local educational agencies (LEAs) provide appropriate educational services to special education students without delay upon their discharge from licensed children's institutions, foster homes, public or proprietary hospitals, resident medical facilities, or state hospitals. The bill also requires such institutions to notify LEAs at least 10 days prior to the discharge of any student qualifying for special education services and to provide the LEAs with a copy of the student's individualized education program (IEP).

Chapter 677, 1989

SCR 16 (Morgan) Requests the Superintendent of Public Instruction to promote and assure compliance with current law regulating latchkey services to children in grades K-8 who have exceptional needs.

Res. Chapter 99, 1989

#### Vocational Education

AB 692 (Hansen) Establishes a new formula for limiting the enrollment of pupils under age 16 in regional occupational centers and programs.

Chapter 1015, 1989

AB 2456 (Murray) Authorizes the Compton Unified School District to establish and operate, on a pilot basis, a high school specializing in science and technology vocational education. The bill appropriates \$130,000 to be allocated to the district on a matching basis.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 1531 (Dills) Provides for a transfer of funds between the appropriate sections of the State School Fund when an apprenticeship program is transferred from a community college district to school district, or vice versa. The bill also authorizes the Department of Finance (DOF) to use any unspent funds in one section of the Fund to fund an apprenticeship program deficit in the other section of the Fund.

Chapter 961, 1989

#### Miscellaneous

AB 33 (Tanner) Appropriates \$5 million to establish a statewide college admissions test preparation program for economically disadvantaged high school students.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 474 (Lempert) Reinstates the Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) program into the Education Code and establishes a new sunset date of June 30, 1993.

Chapter 494, 1989

AB 1901 (Campbell) Extends the sunset date for the Indian Education Centers to June 30, 1992.

Chapter 1466, 1989

AB 2477 (Campbell) Reactivates the Native American Indian Education Program with a new sunset date of June 30, 1995. Renames the program the American Indian Early Childhood Education Program.

Chapter 1183, 1989

SB 537 (Morgan) Requires the SPI to prepare and disseminate program development information on consumer and homemaking education as specified.

Chapter 775, 1989

SB 1024 (McCorquodale) Consolidates and establishes the Pregnant and Parenting Education Program for School Age Persons (PPEPSAP), increases services to parenting and pregnant students, and establishes a funding priority.

Vetoed by the Governor

- 13 -

#### SCHOOL CLIMATE

#### Race Relations/Diversity Education

AB 920 (Bradley) Establishes the Bill Bradley Human Relations Pilot Project designed to teach human relations and to reduce prejudice.

Chapter 735, 1989

SB 1357 (Torres) Requires the State Board of Education to establish a California Schools Human Rights Commission to recommend and report on policies to prevent and respond to hate violence and to promote harmonious school environments. Requires the SBE to develop policies, guidelines, and programs, that promote an appreciation for diversity. Requires the State Department of Education to compile statistics on hate violence crimes at schools.

Vetoed by the Governor

#### School Safety

AB 450 (La Follette) Requires the State Department of Education and the Department of Justice to provide statewide workshops to assist school districts with the development of school safety plans.

Chapter 1253, 1989

AB 697 (Roybal-Allard) Authorizes the State Department of Education (SDE) as the lead agency to develop plans to coordinate earthquake awareness, disaster planning, and hazard reduction programs for public schools. The SDE is to consult with the Seismic Safety Commission, the State Architect, and the Office of Emergency Services.

Chapter 643, 1989

AB 735 (Polanco) Appropriates \$75,000 for the State Department of Education to conduct an assessment of school-based gang and juvenile delinquency prevention activities. The bill also requires the study to assess the extent to which schoolsites are used to reduce juvenile delinquency and gang activities.

Chapter 637, 1989

HEALTH

#### AIDS Education

3

9

AB 11 (Hughes) Requires all pupils in grades 7 to 12 to receive AIDS prevention education. Specifies minimum content, including emphasis on abstinence. Provides direct teacher access to the California AIDS Clearinghouse.

Vetoed by the Governor

#### Drug Education

AB 1566 (Epple) Establishes a two-year pilot substance abuse prevention program using voluntary school nurses to provide drug education programs to students, parents, and teachers.

> Chapter 1051, 1989 (Governor eliminated appropriation)

AB 2065 (Clute) Requires the Office of Criminal Justice and Planning (OCJP) and the State Department of Education to distribute a grant to a nonprofit organization to field test in four districts an anti-drug curriculum model that uses athletes in the classroom.

Chapter 1456, 1989

SB 367 (Garamendi) Repeals contract requirements and allows the Department of Alcohol and Drug Programs to subvene School-Community Primary Prevention Program funds directly to participating county programs. Makes changes in membership of the external review selection committee and in the local match requirement.

Chapter 409, 1989

SB 608 (C. Green) Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to contract for a demonstration center to reduce youth risk-taking behaviors that provides information, training, and technical assistance to youth-serving and local educational agencies.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 1585 (Hart) Requires the posting of a warning sign regarding the hazards of anabolic steroids in any publicly owned athletic facility, including postsecondary institutions and schools that include grades 7 to 12 and requires compulsory leave of absence for school staff charged with aiding a minor in unlawful involvement with specified controlled substances.

Chapter 807, 1989

100

ų,

Ĺ

í.

SJR 11 (Seymour) Encourages districts to establish "Safe and Sober Graduation Night Celebration" programs.

Res. Chapter 51, 1989

#### **Nutrition**

AB 1226 (Moore) Makes the record retention period for private agencies under contract with the Child Nutrition Program consistent with U.S. Department of Agriculture regulations. For unresolved audits, however, records must be retained until the audit is resolved.

Chapter 194, 1989

AB 2109 (Speier) Requires SDE to develop and to maintain nutrition guidelines, including guidelines on fat, saturated fat and cholesterol, for all food and beverages sold at public schools. Requires the use of food products with lower fat or cholesterol content when available.

Chapter 614, 1989

ACR 36 (N. Waters) Proclaims the week of March 13-19, 1989, as California School Lunch Week and commends the National School Lunch Program and California agriculture for their contributions to the health and welfare of California school children.

Res. Chapter 19, 1989

#### <u>Miscellaneous</u>

AB 1481 (Hughes) Requires the SPI to withhold and then redirect up to \$75 for each first grade student lacking a health screening certificate or parental waiver for districts reporting less than 90 percent compliance that have not demonstrated a good faith effort as specified.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 272 (Robbins) Allows districts to self-insure in order to provide medical or hospital service for pupils participating in district sponsored field trips.

Chapter 25, 1989

#### PARENT INVOLVEMENT

AB 57 (Vasconcellos) Establishes the Parent As Teachers grant program to address the educational needs of parents with children up to age 3, with priority to parents under the age of 20 and with limited English proficiency. Sunsets the program on June 30, 1994.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 1077 (M. Waters) Appropriates up to \$100,000 to the SPI to contract with a statewide parent and teacher organization to develop materials to use in training parents to be more involved in their children's education. The bill also provides \$200,000 in grants to the Los Angeles Unified School District to develop ethics and civic values programs, and \$100,000 to the Superintendent of Public Instruction to provide grants for developing instructional materials in ethics and civic values.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 1399 (W. Waters) Establishes guidelines for parent involvement programs and requires schools to comply if they receive either School Improvement Program or Economic Impact Aid funds, and federal funds under Chapter 1 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. Lack of compliance may be grounds to reduce or terminate EIA funding.

Vetoed by the Governor

#### ADMINISTRATION

#### School-Based Management

AB 90 (Hughes) Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to conduct four regional workshops across the State to assist school and school district personnel in implementing school-based management and shared decisionmaking programs.

Vetoed by the Governor

- 17 -

9

۵

SB 824 (Bergeson) Encourages school districts to implement school based management and advanced career opportunities for teachers programs by allowing districts to use funds received through supplemental grants and the School Improvement Program for these purposes.

Chapter 1282, 1989

6

é

otto.

6

ł.

#### <u>Miscellaneous</u>

AB 1562 (Wyman) Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) to submit a report to the Legislature on the number and types of reports that school and school districts are required to submit to the federal government, the state, and the county superintendents of education. The bill also requires the report to identify the amount of time teachers are required to spend on preparing those reports submitted to the SPI.

Chapter 1186, 1989

AB 2150 (Woodruff) Permits districts to extend the time deadline for notifying parents of denials of interdistrict transfer requests when those requests are made at the end of a school years.

Chapter 853, 1989

AB 2528 (Seastrand) Authorizes the Pacific Unified School District to operate on a four-day school week through 1992-93.

Chapter 1403, 1989

SB 280 (Hart) Requires schools to include in their Proposition 98 Report Cards information on the statewide average percentage of district budgets allocated for administrator and teacher salaries, as well as information on the particular district's allocations for administrator and teacher salaries. The bill also requires the Legislative Analyst to study the most appropriate and efficient means of monitoring the allocation of resources by school districts including the need to adjust administrator/teacher ratios in law.

Chapter 1463, 1989

SB 381 (Dills) Allows use of absentee ballots to fill vacancies to county committees and extends the period of time allowed to fill vacancies on those committees from 60 to 70 days.

Chapter 860, 1989

SB 678 (Davis) Designates food service joint power entities as single school districts for the purposes of apportionments and maintains seniority of personnel upon transfer from a district to such a joint power entities in five specified school districts.

Chapter 1414, 1989

SB 1220 (Dills) Requires each general education development (GED) test center to automatically forward the applicant's test results, and requires (rather than authorizes) the State Department of Education (SDE) to issue a high school equivalency certificate beginning July 1, 1990. The bill also appropriates \$75,000 as a loan for SDE to establish a computerized system of recording test results.

Chapter 783, 1989

SB 1614 (Garamendi) Adds six additional members to the California Summer School for the Arts Board of Trustee, including four members of the foundation for CSSA, and specifies that members of the Board oversee CSSA budget and have arts experience.

Vetoed by the Governor

SCR 32 (Russell) Requests the State Department of Education to distribute the "Handbook on the Legal Rights and Responsibilities of School Personnel and Students in the Area of Moral and Civic Education and Teaching About Religion" to each teacher in the State, and to incorporate the contents into the Department's teacher training workshops.

Res. Chapter 123, 1989

#### HIGHER EDUCATION

#### Student Fees And Financial Aid

춼

9

AB 259 (Clute) Waives nonresident tuition at the California State University for military personnel and their dependents who are on active duty in California.

Chapter 900, 1989

AB 288 (Clute) Provides a tuition and fee exemption for any dependent or surviving spouse (who has not remarried) of a member of the California National Guard who was killed, permanently disabled, or died of a disability resulting from an event that occurred while in the active service of the State.

Chapter 136, 1989

é

é

ł

AB 400 (W. Brown) Establishes the Willie L. Brown, Jr. Community Service Scholarship Program to encourage community service work by high school students.

Chapter 1188, 1989

AB 768 (Murray) Requires each participating institution in the Assumption Program of Loans for Education to increase the participation of minority teaching candidates through its recruitment and retention efforts.

Chapter 836, 1989

AB 1237 (Clute) Extends state resident status to any student who is a graduate of any California school operated by the U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs for the purposes of enrollment in a state funded institution of higher education.

Chapter 424, 1989

AB 1276 (Areias) Extends the sunset date for the current law governing student fees from August 31, 1990, to August 1, 1995, and makes technical changes to clarify current law.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 2095 (Lempert) Requires the Student Aid Commission to implement a student loan amnesty program for encouraging borrowers in default of student loans to reestablish loan payments under a revised repayment plan.

Chapter 574, 1989

AB 2096 (Lempert) Requires the Student Aid Commission to establish a process which ensures regular annual credit reporting on the repayment status of borrowers whose loans are guaranteed by the Commission.

Chapter 384, 1989

AJR 33 (Woodruff) Memorializes the President and Congress to reconsider, and revise as necessary, the guidelines for institutional participation and student eligibility in federal student financial aid programs, for the purposes of reducing the student loan default rate.

Res. Chapter 110, 1989

SB 237 (Bill Greene) Creates the Cooperative Education Grants Program to provide grants of \$50,000 to \$120,000 to institutions of higher education for administrative costs in operating college work study programs.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 1106 (Bergeson) Makes various technical and substantive changes to student aid programs and statutory requirements.

Chapter 1113, 1989

#### <u>Community Colleges</u>

۲

۵

6

AB 766 (Frazee) Appropriates \$150,000 to the Community Colleges for the "Recording for the Blind" Program to support the loan of taped educational books to blind, visually impaired, and learning disabled community college students.

Chapter 1311, 1989

AB 806 (Bates) Requires community college district governing boards to permit a person to audit a course and to charge a fee determined by the governing board.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 1139 (N. Waters) Extends until June 30, 1992, a "Field Act" exemption to the Lodi Unified School District so that they may continue to lease specified residential houses for use as classroom facilities. This bill also extends a "Field Act" exemption to the Lake Tahoe Community College District for use of a specified building until June 1995.

Chapter 217, 1989

AB 2155 (Vasconcellos) Makes minor changes to clarify provisions of last year's major community college reform bill, AB 1725 (Vasconcellos, Ch. 973, St. 1988) and to delay implementation of some measures until the requisite funding is in place.

Chapter 1071, 1989

SB 692 (Alquist) Revises the procedure for computing the increase in statewide ADA, authorizes community college district governing boards to claim ADA for courses conducted in federal prisons, and reappropriates funds to the Community Colleges from the Proposition 98 reserve for funding enrollment growth up to \$15 million or the amount available after funding K-12 deficiencies and class size reduction.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 716 (Watson) Provides community college districts another alternative to use in setting nonresident tuition fees based on an amount no less than the average statewide cost per student and no more than the district's average cost per student.

Chapter 985, 1989

SB 955 (Stirling) Increases the options community college district governing boards have in selecting which day to commemorate Lincoln Day by allowing them to close campuses on the Friday preceding or following Lincoln Day.

Chapter 267, 1989

SB 1590 (Petris) Permits community college district governing boards to contract for the operation of a campus bookstore, through a competitive bidding process until October 2, 1990, or until the State Supreme Court decision on 1st Street Books v. Marin Community College District becomes final, whichever occurs last. This bill also contains provisions related to community college teaching credentials, authorization for community college districts to purchase computer software without competitive bidding, and authorization for districts to claim ADA for courses conducted in federal prisons.

Chapter 1340, 1989

#### California State University

AB 464 (Baker) Appropriates \$1.3 million for a California State University acquisition at San Jose and \$2.4 million for two cafeterias in the Saddleback Community College District.

Chapter 1190, 1989

AB 691 (Jones) Increases the amount that the Board of Governors of the California Maritime Academy may pay to the commanding officer of the Academy's vessel not to exceed \$75,000 and authorizes the deposit of all financial aid money in the possession of the California State University into a checking account in the centralized treasury system.

Chapter 154, 1989

AB 2227 (Epple) Prohibits personal services agreements between the California State University and other entities from displacing University employees.

Vetoed by the Governor

AB 2240 (Hughes) Establishes the California Mathematics Diagnostic Testing (MDTP) Program independent from the California Academic Partnership Program, creates an advisory committee for the MDTP and requires the California State University to administer the Program.

> Chapter 872, 1989 (Appropriation deleted by the Governor)

SB 365 (Craven) Includes San Marcos in the list of locations for campuses of the California State University, and designates the campus at that location as the California State University, San Marcos.

Chapter 289, 1989

#### University of California

9

3

AB 341 (Hannigan) Requests that the University of California rename the California Center for Cooperatives as the Center for Cooperatives and other minor technical changes related to the Center for Cooperatives.

Chapter 668, 1989

SB 578 (Garamendi) Authorizes the State Public Works Board to issue certificates, notes, or revenue bonds up to \$250 million until June 30, 1992, to finance the acquisition of land and equipment and construction of facilities on sites owned or leased by the University of California for long term scientific research activities.

Chapter 1145, 1989

#### Campus Crime

SB 1358 (Torres) Requires all public and private postsecondary education institutions to annually submit a report to the Department of Justice on crime statistics for each campus within the institutions's jurisdiction.

Vetoed by the Governor

1

(

ALC: N

1

SB 1546 (Roberti) Requires alleged victims of sexual abuse to be informed of the results of any disciplinary actions taken in connection with the assault or offense.

Chapter 593, 1989

#### Private Postsecondary Education

AB 1402 (M. Waters) Creates the Maxine Waters School Reform and Student Protection Act of 1989, which expands student protections and standards for private vocational schools.

Chapter 1239, 1989

SB 190 (Morgan) Implements recommendations made by the California Postsecondary Education Commission (CPEC) for reform and revision of the Private Postsecondary Education Act by replacing it with the Private Postsecondary Education Reform Act of 1989, which would become inoperative on June 30, 1997. Transfers regulatory authority for private postsecondary education from the Superintendent of Public Instruction to the newly created Council for Private Postsecondary Education.

Chapter 1307, 1989

SB 849 (L. Greene) Prohibits unaccredited, degree-granting postsecondary institutions from allowing more than 20 percent of the credit towards a degree to be life or work experience credit.

Chapter 1298, 1989

#### General Postsecondary Education

AB 48 (Hughes) Extends the Mathematics, Engineering, and Science Achievement (MESA) Program through June 30, 1995, broadens the program goals and states legislative intent that funding of the MESA program through the Budget Act process include a community college component.

Chapter 1348, 1989

ACR 83 (Hayden) Requests that California's public colleges and universities provide counseling and assistance to foreign students from the People's Republic of China who fear returning to their country and encourages colleges and universities to provide tuition waivers and other financial support to Chinese students demonstrating emergency need.

۵

Res. Chapter 149, 1989

SB 171 (Boatwright) Permits the University of California, California State University, and California community college districts to continue to pay 12 percent per annum interest on revenue bond anticipation notes issued after January 1, 1990.

Chapter 321, 1989

SB 915 (McCorquodale) Establishes the California Center for Corporate Research to facilitate the study and understanding of issues concerning corporate governance and shareholder rights.

Vetoed by the Governor

SB 1416 (Torres) Expands provisions of existing law regarding standardized tests for the purpose of assessing the state's progress in increasing minority students' access to college.

Chapter 446, 1989

INDEX

	Bill Number	<u>Page Number</u>
	AB 11	15
	AB 33	13
1	AB 47	5
	AB 48	24
	AB 57	17
ł	AB 90	17
	AB 101	3
	AB 137	1
	AB 181	4
	AB 198	1
	AB 259	19
	AB 280	2
	AB 288	20
	AB 335	10
	AB 341	23
	AB 387	2
	AB 400	20
	AB 450	14
	AB 464	22
	AB 476	11
	AB 691	23
	AB 692	12
	AB 697	14
	AB 735	14
	AB 751	1

>

4

way.

(

Bill Number	Page Number
AB 766	21
AB 768	20
AB 789	2
AB 806	21
AB 823	2
AB 898	11
AB 920	14
AB 953	6
AB 1012	9
AB 1077	17
AB 1087	1
AB 1105	7
AB 1139	21
AB 1164	5
AB 1168	7
AB 1190	10
AB 1215	7
AB 1226	16
AB 1227	5
AB 1232	2
AB 1237	20
AB 1246	1
AB 1276	20
AB 1321	5
AB 1399	17

Bill Number	Page Number
AB 1402	24
AB 1470	11
AB 1481	16
AB 1562	18
AB 1566	15
AB 1541	7
AB 1744	12
AB 1761	7
AB 1901	13
AB 1962	11
AB 2026	9
AB 2039	7
AB 2065	15
AB 2095	20
AB 2096	20
AB 2099	8
AB 2109	16
AB 2150	18
AB 2155	21
AB 2225	9
AB 2227	23
AB 2240	23
AB 2304	8
AB 2456	12
AB 2477	13

D

-Itolana

ŧ

Bill Number	Page Number
AB 2525	2
AB 2528	18
ACR 36	16
ACR 37	9
ACR 70	8
ACR 83	25
AJR 33	21
SB 21	2
SB 68	10
SB 77	4
SB 80	5
SB 109	2
SB 131	4
SB 139	4
SB 156	8
SB 164	5
SB 171	25
SB 190	24
SB 206	3
SB 237	21
SB 272	17
SB 280	16
SB 365	23
SB 367	15
SB 381	18

Bill Number	Page Number
SB 410	10
SB 537	13
SB 578	223
SB 594	9
SB 608	15
SB 666	3
SB 678	19
SB 692	22
SB 693	3
SB 716	22
SB 759	6
SB 821	6
SB 824	18
SB 849	24
SB 885	12
SB 914	6
SB 942	6
SB 915	25
SB 950	10
SB 955	22
SB 1024	13
SB 1106	21
SB 1202	11
SB 1220	19
SB 1358	24

۲

۲

þ

Bill Number	<u>Page Number</u>
SB 1357	14
SB 1368	8
SB 1416	25
SB 1440	3
SB 1528	5
SB 1531	13
SB 1546	24
SB 1585	16
SB 1590	22
SB 1614	19
SCR 16	12
SCR 32	19
SJR 3	4
SJR 11	16

- 31 -

¢

¢

The second

é